CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of GMR Airport Developers Limited.

Report on the Ind AS Financial Statements

Opinion

1. We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of GMR Alrport
Developers Limited {the “Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March
31, 2020, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Cther Comprehensive Income), the
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information. (hereinafter referred to as “Ind AS financial statements”),

2. In our opinion and fo the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements for the year ended 31t March,
2020 give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act’) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India including Indian Accounting Standards (‘'Ind AS’) specified
under section 133 of the Act, of the state of affairs (financial position) of the company as
at 31st March, 2020, and its profit (financial performance including other comprehensive
income), its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion:

3. We conducted owr audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified
under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the Audifor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India('ICAI) together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Ind AS financial statements
under the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requitements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

4. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Board report, but does not
include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.
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K.8. Rao & Co., Continuation Sheet........

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we
will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required o report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Ind AS Financial Statements:

5. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5)
of the Act with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs (financial position), profit or loss (financial
performance including other comprehensive income), changes in equity and cash flows
in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgements and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and design, implementaton and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

6. In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, ar has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

7. The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements;

8., Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
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is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with 5As will always detect a material misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

9. As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

(i)  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control,

(ii) Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, Under section
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether
the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

(iif) Fvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

(iv} Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our aunditor's
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the andit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

(v} Evaluate the overall presentation, struchure and content of the financial
statements, Including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation,

10. Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a
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reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We
consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our
audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (i) to evaluate the effect of
any identified misstatements in the financial statements

11. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

12, We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Other Matter:

13. The Financial statements of the company for the year ended March 2019 were audited
by the predecessor auditor i.e., S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP who have expressed
unmodified opinion vide their audit report dated April 25, 2019 , whose reports have
been furnished to us and which have been relied upon by us, for the purpose of our
audit.

Qur opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements:

14. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by
the Central Government of India in terms of sub section (11) of section 143 of the
Compardes Act, 2013, we give in “Annexure - A” a statement on the matters specified in
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extend applicable.

15. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash
Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the
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Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended.

On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on 31st March
2020 taken on record by the board of directors, none of the directors are disqualified
as on 31st March, 2020 from being appointed as directors in terms of section 164(2) of
the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such
controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure-B”. Our report expresses an
unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

In our Opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March31, 2020 has
been paid/ provided by the company to its directors in accordance with provisions
of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as
amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according: to the
explanations given to us:

1. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its Ind AS financial statements - (Refer Note 27 to the Ind AS
financial statements),

fi. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses;

iii. There were no amounts i'equired to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31st March 2020.

For K.S Rao & Co.,,
Chartered Accountants
ICAIFirm Registration No: 0031095

Hitesh Kumar P
Partner

Place: Bengaluru Membership No, 233734
Date: 18t June, 2020 UDIN: 20233734AAAADCS599

PageSof 1t




K.S. Rao & Co., Continuation Sheet........

Annexure - A to the Independent Auditors’ Repart

The Annexure referred to in Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of the Company
on the Ind AS financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020 we report that:

(i) Inrespect of the Company’s fixed assets (Property, Plant and Equipment)

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars,
including quanttative details and situation of fixed assets (Property, Plant and

Equipment).

(b) The Management has conducted physical verification of fixed assets (Property,
Plant and Equipment) during the year. The Company has the program of
physical verification of fixed assets (Property, Plant and Fquipment) every
year, which is reasonable in our opinion having regard to the size of the
company and the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were noted on
such verification.

(¢} According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
our examination of the records of the Company, there are no immovable
properties included in Property, Plant and Equipment of the company and
accordingly, the requirements under paragraph 3(i)(c) of the order are not
applicable to the company.

(i) The Management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable
intervals during the year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such
physical verification.

(i) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to any company, firm, Limited Liability
Partnership or other parties listed in the register maintained under section 189 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’). Accordingly, clauses from (iif) (a) to {iii) (¢) of
paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given fo us, the
Company has no loans, investments, guarantee and security which meets the
requirements of section 185 and 186 of the Act.

(v) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not ‘
accepted deposits and does not have any unclaimed deposits within the meaning of
Section 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014
{as amended). Accordingly, the provisions of the clause 3 (v) of the Order are not
applicable.

The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under
section 148(1) of the Act, for any of the services rendered by the Company.
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a) According to the information and explanations given to us and according to the
records as produced and examined by us, in our opinion, the Company is regular is
in depositing with appropriate authorities the undisputed statutory dues including
provident fund, employee’s state insurance, income tax, sales tax, service tax, value
added tax, goods and service tax, customs duty, excise duty, cess and other statutory
dues applicable to it and there are no arrears of outstanding statutory dues as at 31=
Mareh, 2020 for a period of more than six months form date they become payable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues in
respect of income tax, sales tax, service tax, value added tax, goods and service tax,
customs duty, excise duty, cess which have not been deposited on account of
dispute except for the below:

The Company has received a show cause notice from the Principal Commissioner of
Central Tax & Customns dated April 18, 2019 for Rs. 28741 lakhs (March 31, 2019:
Nil). Company has filed reply letter on 14% August 2019 to rectify the show cause
notice as there is a clerical error while quantifying the demand. Personal hearing
was happened on 27% January 2020. Based on an inlemal assessment, Management
is confident that for the above-mentioned matters, no provision is required to be
made as at March 31, 2020.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, we are of
the opinion that the Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to a financial

institution, bank and government. The Company has not issued any debenfures -

during the year and does not have any outstanding dues in respect of debenture
holders.

The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments) and term loans during the year. Accordingly,
paragraph 3 (ix) of the Order is not applicable,

According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the
Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or
reported during the course of our audit.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the
managerial remuneration has been paid in accordance with requisite approvals
mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with schedule V to the Companies
Act, 2013,

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is not a Nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not
applicable. '
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According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are
in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of
such transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of shares of fully or partly convertible
debentures during the year.

{xv) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-
cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly,
paragraph 3{xv) of the Order is not applicable.

(cvi) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve
Bank of India Act 1934.

For K.S Rao & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm registration no: 0031095
Hitesh Kumar P
Partner
Place: Bengaluru Membetship number: 233734
Date: 18% June, 2020 UDIN: 20233734 AAAADCE5%9
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Annexure - B to the Independent Auditors” Report

Independent Auditors Repott on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial conirols with reference to financial statements of
GMR Airport Developers Limited (“the Company”) as of 31st March, 2020 in conjunction
with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that
date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Conirols

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal confrol stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAT’). These responsibilities
inctude the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and
the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies
Act, 2013.

Auditors” Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
(the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAT and deemed to be
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an
audit of internal financial controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating
effectiveness, Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
includes obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
esign and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
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procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements.

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and
the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements includes those policies and procedures that,

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2} provide reasonable
assurance that fransactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
conirols, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with
reference fo financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material réspects, an adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements were operating effectively as at 315t March 2020, based on
the internal financial confrols with reference to financial statemenis criteria established by
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For K.5 Rao & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
ICAT Firm regis&mﬁon no: 0031095

o

Hitesh Kumar P

Partner
Place: Bengaluru Membership number: 233734
Date: 18% June, 2020 : UDIN: 20233734AAAADCS599
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GMR Adrport Develapers Limited

CIN: U622007TG2006 PLCO59646

Balance sheet ag at 31 March 2020

(Al amounts in Indian Rupees fakhs, excopt as otherwise stated)

Notes March 31, 2020 March 31,2095 |
ASSETS .
{I} Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 271,81 32749
Right of use assels 31 314,73 -
Capital work-in-progress 3 - -
Intangible assets 4 - -
Investment In subsldiary 5 - -
Financial asgets 3
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 11 18717 18717
Loans 68 2,899.47 3,759.73
Other noncuzrent sasets ) 7 240 95.35
Non current tax assets 2 8 €75,35 439.32
Deferred tax asaets (net) wc 407.01 30288
{2) Current asspis
Inventoriea % - 2538
Finanelal assets
Investments GA 2974,16 -
Trade receivables 10 1,235.74- 2,3C5.80
Cash and cash equivalents 11 12,90 78232
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 11 - -
Lodns 3] 4.637.59 4,825,900
Other financial assets &C 568.04 22925
Cther current assets 7 474.96 601,65
Cuerrent tax asset B 2 g
Tatal Asaets 14,769.43 1388221
EQUITY AND LIABILITIRS
Equity
Equity Share Capital 2 1,019.59 101669
Other Bquity
Secwritles premitem 13A 31.49 510,69
Retalned earnings 134 4.014.58 347104
Totsl Eqaity 5,344.96 500142
Linbilitiea
(i) Non-current Habilllles
Finmanciai Liabllitfes
Borrowings 1A - 526.72
Lease liabilltles 148 9092 -
Other financial liabiities D 57632 873.84
Other non-current liabilltles . 15 83.40 164.51
{3 Cutrent Habilities
Tinancial Liabilittes
Shart term borrowings 144 1,900.00 -
Leasa linbilites 148 271.21 -
Trade Payables
Tatal antstanding duea of micro, smalk and medivm entetprises - -
Total outstanding dues other than of micra, small and medium enterprises 14C 26711 8 2,608.65
Other financial Habilitles 4D 1,396,82 2.7846.88
Other current liabilities 15 603.54 70722
Short term provisions 15 1,624.15 171297 |
Total liabflitles J } 9,224 47 8,880.79
Total Eqnity and LiablTitles : ; 1476043 | . 1386221
{Summeary of significant accounting policies 21
The secompanying netes are an integral part of the financial statements,
As pef our report of even data,
For K.S. Rao & Co For and on belsalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants i i GMR Aitport lopers Limited
ICAIFirm registration msmber; 6031095
% P .
Prabhakaza ¥ao Indana B.K.Kameswata Rao
rector Chief Executiva Qfficer
DIN: 03482239
b i\
per Hitesh Kumar P Gadi Radha Babu
Parttier Direcior ¢ .
Membership no.: 2357342 DIN: 02300866 P
Charterad Company secretary We Air
Accountants ACs 23778 <
Place: Bengaiuru Flace: New Delfu Flace: Hyderabad

Date: Tune 18, 2020 Daie; Juna 18, 2020 . Data; June 18,2020




GMR Airport Developers Limited
CIN: U62200TG2008PLCO5%646

Statemant of prafit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2020
{AIl amounts in Indian Rupees lakhs, except ss otherwise stated)

Notes | = For the venr ended For the year ended
. March 31, 2020 . March 31,2019

Revenue

Revenue from contracts with cusfomers 18 15,532,985 14,356,589
Other income 1% 231.27 27742
iFinence Income 20 1,057.36 1,083.83
Total revenue 16,821.58 15,667,683
Expendes

Purchases of traded gaods 21A §79.21 1,348.96
Ingrease in inventorles of wraded goods 21B 25.38 (17.81}
Employee benefits expensas 2 10,280.84 8,888.81
Other expenses 23 1,896,32 4,227.11
Finance costs 24 528.94 654,50
Depreciation and amortization expense 25 737.22 65.66 |
Total expense 1444791 15,167.23
Proflt befaze tax 2,373.67 500,60
Tax expense;

Current tax 174 781.01 200.25
Current taxes for earller years (35.82) (80.20)
Deferred tax income 17A. 104,15} (43.61)
Incoma Tax Experse 64104 76.44
Profit for the year 1,732.63 424,16
Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or Iosa

Re-measuremant losses on defined benefit plans (82.73) (37.54)
Total comprehensive income for the year (V+VI) 1,649.90 386,62
Earnings per share

Basie and diluted 26 16.99 416
|Summary of significant accounting policies 21

The accompanylng notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Ag per our report of even date.

For K.5. Rao & Co
Chartered Accouniants
ICA] Firtn registration number; 0031095

X
per Hitesh Kumar P

Pariner
Membership no.: 233734

FPlace: Bengaluru
Date: June 18, 2020

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
GMR Airport Degelopers Limited

- 7

Prabhakara R40 Indana
Director
DIN: (3482239

i <
Gadi Ray Babu
Director
DIN: 02290865

Flace: New Delhi
Date: June 18, 2020

B ke

B.K.Kameswara Rao
Chief Bxecutive Officar

Chief Financial Officer

IS

San;eemd Y

Compemy secretary
ACS 23778

Fluce: Hyderzbad
Date: June 18, 2020



CMR Afrpart Devalppers Limited

CINt Us2200TG008 FLEIS9646

Cash flow statement for the year endad 31 March 2020

{All amounts in Indian Rupees Takhs, except av otherwise atated)

For the year ended For the yearended
Maxch 37, 2020 Marck 31, 2012
Cash flow frum operating activities :
Proflt before tax . ' 1,371.67 5060
Adjustment to reconcile profit before tax ba nef cash Aows
Depreciation and ampréization expenses iz ) 63,66
Unsesli=d forelgn exchenga {zatn}/loss 501 0.67)
Amortisation of deferred Income {17643} {148.49)
Gain on sale of financinl sspets fmufual funds) (43,73) {115,103
Gain on falz valvation of financial assets {mutual funds) (3.08) 441
Interest othars (057 (2a.89)
Arertisatian of prepeid expenss {169 3006
[nterest fncoma {986.75) (1.004.95)|
Interest expense 6524.91 85129
Operating profit befare working capltal changes 2358,52 {#L.07)
Movemeats in working tapital ¢
bIncresse in trade payables 5945 116263
Incresse in ather Habilites (179,79 469.97
Increase/ {decrease} in other financial Hablities 7239 1,318.36
(Increase) In trade raceivables 1,080.05 $97.85)
(Incraass) in nventorizs 2539 17.81)
(Increase) in other assels 163.73 33187
(Inerease)/decreass in financtal assets {28B.42) (183.84)
Increase in provisions 32845 52s
Cazh generabed from nperations . 363967 145680
Crizect taxes (paid) (net of rafunds} (581,22} (6562.90)
Net eash flowr fram operating activiiles (A) 265845 793.50
Cash flaws from {nvesting actvites
Enter corporate deposits given 15,000.00) {200.00)
Redempton/ makurily of inter corporate deposits 543077 141540
Perchiase of fxed assets (357 {8134}
Purehase of clifrant investments (17,198.86) (15,250,00}
Proceeds from sale/matudiy of ourzent investments 14,271.53 17,865.75
Investment in margin money deposit (heving original maturity mora
than one yaar) = ©eran
Rademption of margin muney deposit (having ariginal maturity of more R 1500
than three months) N
Interest recetved 690,96 sredd |
Net cash flow from Inveu!% activitizs (B) {#19,59)| 3,136.08
| Cash flowe feom fnancing activities
Proceeds from shori-term borrowtngs 190000 -
Dividend peid to equity sharsholdara(ind DDT) (1,106,356} {A14,65)
Repayment of long-term bormowings = (2375.00) (2,250.00}
Rapayment of Lease Labilties (535.83) o
Interest pakd X 280.00) (524.49)
Net cash flow weed b Bnancing activitiea (C) (2,497.23) {3,3H8.07)
Nt Incresse in rashand cash equivalents {4 + 8 + &) {65842} sel
Cash and mhﬂuivalents at the beglnning of the year 7B2.32 220,41
Cash and cash equivalents ot fhe endl of the year 123.90 782.42
Components of cash and cash equivalents
With banka
- o cuirent accoun b 123.90 78232
Totz] cash and cash equivalents {note 11} 123.90 7323
[Summazy of significant sccosnting policlos (aote 5.3] _
Changes in Habiliter srfalog fram Anancing activitles
TR . Warch 31, 2050 March J1, 2019 |
Opeulng balance ZBL641 45504 |
Cash Flowrs 1,900.00 -
Py (2,375.00) {2,250.00)
Proceeds = =
Non Cash Blows ' . s D
Finance cost 85.11 146,27
|Ciosing balance 2T 7161 |
The accoenpenying notes ar an integzal part of the Enaseial statements,
As per vur repart of aven daie, 3

Por K.S. Rao & Co For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
[CAT Frm registration number: 2031093 GMR Alrport Develghers Limited
Cherlered Accountants : M
' ' ‘l 2 / "
W’ Prabhakara Reo B.ICKameswarz Rag .

par Hitegh Kumse B
Partner
Mentbarship no.: 233734

ga
Company secretary
ATS 2377
Place: Bengeiurg Flace: New Dathi Place: Hyderabad
Date: Jure 18, 2020 Date: june 18, 2020 Dibes ]tu;e 18, 2020




GMR Airport Developers Limited

CIN: U62200TG2008PLC052645

Statement of changes In equity for the year ended 31 March 2020
(All amounts in Indfan Rupees lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

Atiributable to the equity holders of the patent
4 Reserves and surplus i
Equity share capital Shara pramiurn Retained earnings Total

As at April 1, 2018 1,019.6% 510,69 3,698.06 4,209.75
Profit for the year - - 424,76 424.16
Bonus shares ssued - = = N
Dividend : = = {500.85) {509.85)
Dividend distribution tax - - (104.80) (104.80)
Remeasurament of post-employment benefits obligations - - {57.54) (37.54)
Ag at Maxck 31, 2019 31015.6% 510,69 347103 3.981.72
Tmipect on secount of adoptlan of Ind A5 116 . - - B
Profit for the year - - 1,732.63 1,732.63
Bohus shares (ssued - - - -
Dividend - - {517.72) (9‘17.72!
Dividend digtzibution tax - - (188.64) {168.64)
Remeasuremant of post-employment benefits obligations - - (82.73) (82.73)
As at March, 31, 2020 1,019.6% 510.63 4,014.57 452526
For K.8. Rao & Co For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chattered Accountants GMR Alrport Developers Limited

ICAI Firm registration number: 0051095

g
~\@
}!‘J
per Hitesh Kumar P
Parmer

Memibership no.: 233734

Place; Bengaluru
Date; Juns 18, 2020

T Utlps.

Prabhakera K4o Indana B.K.Kameswara Rao
Diractor Chief Bxecutive Officer
_ DIN:03482239
Gadi Kxi Babu
Director]
DIN: 02390866
~
San Y
Company sacretary
ACS 23778
Place: New Dethi Place: Hyderabad

Date; Tune 18, 2020 Date: June 18, 2020
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GMR Airport Developers Limitesd

CIN: U62200TG2008PLC059646

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
fAll amounts in Indian Rupees lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

3.1 Right of use assets

Cost

At April 1, 2018
Additions

At Mazxch 31, 2019
Additions

At March 31, 2020

Depreciation

At April 1, 2018

Charge for the year (Note 25)
Disposals

At March 31, 2019

Charge for the year (Note 25)
Disposals

At March 31, 2020

Net book value
At March 31, 2020
Af March 31, 2019

Building Equipment Total
512.20 470.19 082.39
512.20 470.19 982.39
512.20 470,19 982.39
240.63 427.03 667.66
240.63 427.03 667.66
27157 43.16 314.73




GMR Airport Developers Limited

CIN: U62200TG2008PLC059646

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(All amounts in Indian Rupees lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

4. Intangible Assets

Computer software

Cost

At Aprill, 2018 33.92
Additions -
Disposals =
At March 31, 2019 33.92
Additions ' -
Disposals -
At March 31, 2020 33.92

Amortisation

At April 1, 2018 33.80
Amortisation (Note 25) 0.12
Disposals
At March 31, 2019 33.92
Amortisation {(Note 25) -
Disposals =
At March 31, 2020 33,92

Net book value
At March 31, 2020 -
At March 31, 2019




GMR Airport Developers Limited

CIN: U62200TG2003PLIC059646

Nates to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(All amounss in Indkar Rupees-lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

5. Investment in subsidiary

Investments at cost Iess impairment i any
Investments in equify instruments of subsidiary
Linquoted equity shares

GADL{Mauritius) Limited

165,000 (31 March 2019: 165,000} HEquity shares of USD 1 each fully paid-
up

Less: Provislon for impairment in value

Total investments carricd at cost

6. Financial assets

A, Investments
Investmenis at FVTPL

Non current Current
March 31,2020  Marck 31,2019  March 31,2020 March 31, 2019
83.06 B3.06 - -
(83,06) (83.06} = =
Nun ¢urrent Cairent
March 31, 2020 March 31,2015 March 31, 2020 Mazch 31, 2019

Aditya Birla San Tife Liquid Fund-Regular Growth plan - - 1,532.64 -
479,611 (31 March 2019: Nil) units of Rs.100 each
Aditya Birla Sun Life Liquid Fund-Overnight Divect Growth plan - - 1,441,562
133,443 (31 March 2019: Nii) units of Ra.100¢ each
Total FVTPL investments - - 2,574.16 -
Aggregate value of unguoted investments - - 2,074.16 -
B. Loans
Non current Current
Maxch 31, 2020 Mazch 31, 2019 March 31, 20280  March 31, 2019
At amortised cost
Unsecuted, congidered good
Security deposits 49474 150.24 164.56 172.84
Loans 1o employees 473 5,09 4,04 5.40
Loans to related parties * 2,400.00 3,564.40 4,466.99 4,647,656
' 2,899.47 3,759.73 4,637.59 4,825.90
Break up of Loans o related parties
Loans
GMR Generatlon Assets Limited 2,400,00 2,400,00 - -
CGMR Infrastructure Limited “ 1,164,40 4,466.99 4,647 66
2400.00 3,564.40 4,466,99 4,647,66

*“{f) Loan given ¢o fellow subsidiary, GMR Energy Limited {GEL), amounting to Rs.2,400.00 (March 31, 2019: Rs.2,400.00} at an interest rate of
12,50% p.a. The said Jozn was novated in the name of GMR Generation Assets Limited by an agreement dated October 24, 2016, The said loan is
repayable on April 29, 2020. As per the terms of the loan agreement, GMR Infrastructure Limited has provided s comfort letter guaranteeing the
repayment of the outstanding principal along with the interest to the Company. The loan has been given for meeting its working capital

requirement.

{ii) Loan piven to GAL'Y holding company, GMR Infrastructure Limited, amounting to Rs.4,466.99 (March 31, 2019: Rs.5,812.06) at an interest rate

0 12,95% p.a (March 31, 2019: 12.95%).

C. Other financial assets

Unsecared , considered good
Unbilled revenue

Interest accrued on others
Interest accreed on fixed deposits

Current
March 31,2020 March 31, 2019

4296 =
506.92 2488
18,16 437
568,04 229.25




GMR Atrport Developers Limifed

CIN: U200 TG2008PLC0O59646

Notes to the finaneizl stafements for the year ended March 31, 2020
{All amounts In Indian Rupees lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

7. Other assets
Advances other than capifal advances
Other receivables
Other advances
4
Prapaid expenses

Balarwe with statutory / government suthorities
(&

Tatal other assets

8. Current tax

Advanca income-tax [net of provision for taxation of Rs. 177,75
(March 31, 2009: Re.1011.65)]

9, Inventorles (valied at Jower of cost and net realizable value)

Traded goods

10, Trade receivables

Related parties [refer tiote 28)
Cthers
Break-up for security details:

Secured, congiderad good
Unsecured, considered good

Non current

Cuzreht

March 31,2020 March 31, 2019

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

- - 6211 66.13

- - 91.43 17451

= = 153,54 240,70

940 1720 143.46 11%.38

- 78,16 177.96 241.57

9.40 95.34 32142 360.93

940 95.36 474.96 601.65

Non eurrent Current

March 31,2080 March 31, 2719 Ilarch 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
675.35 439.32 - -
67535 439.32 - -

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
- 25.38
- 23.38

Current
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
1,156.21 2,024,72
63.53 281.08
122574 2,905.80

Current
Match 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
1,235.74 2,305.80
1,225.74 2,303.80

The sales to and purchases from related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length wansactions. Oubstanding balances
at the year end are secured to the extent of security deposits received, are interest bearing and settlement occurs in cash. For the year ended March 31,
2020, the Company has not recorded any impairment of recelvables relating o amounts owed by related parties (March 31, 201%: Rs, Nil), This
asvessment i5 umdertaken each finarncial period /year through examining the financial position of the related party and the market in which the related

party opetales,

Trade recefvables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 0 to 30 days.

11, Cash and cash equivalents

Non-current Current
March 31,2020 March 51, 2019 March 31,2020 March 31, 2019
Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks on current accounta - - 123.90 78232
5 - 123.90 782.32
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents IMarch 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 March 31, 2020 March 37, 2019

- Margin money deposits with original maturity of more than 3
months and less than 12 manths *

- Margin money deposits with remaining maturity of mose than 12
months *

Cash at banks does not earn inlerest.

187.17 187.17

187,17 187.17

*The margin monsy depoalt was towards perfermance bank guarantae issued by the bank cn behalfl of the Company Rs.187.17 (March 51, 2019 Rs.

187.17).




GMR Adrpart Developers Limited

CIN: U62200TG2008PLCO5645

Notes to the financial statements for the yeer ended ¥arch 31, 2020
{Adl amonnts in Indian Rupees lakhs, except 25 otherwlise stated)

12, Equity Share Capital
March 31, 2020 Maxch 31, 2019

Authotised Share Capital ’

{106,00,000 Equity shares of Rs, 10 each/-) 1,060.00 1,060.00

Tasmed, Sobarribed and Fully pald up share capital

(101,97,000 Equity shates of Rs. 10 each/-) 149.69 1,019.69

Terma/ rights attached to equity shazes
The Company has only one class of equity sheres having z par vatue of Ry, 10 per share. Each holder of eqitity shares [s entitled o one vote
per share,

The Company declares and pays dividend in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the board of dirertory Is subject to the approval of
the ghargholders in the ansuing Annuak General Meeting(refer note 138).

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares would be entitled to recelve remaining assets of the Company,
affer distribution of all praferential amoiunts, The distribution will be in proporion to the number of equity shares held by the
sharehalders.

Shares held by kolding foltimate holding company /holding company andfor their subsidlaties/associates.
Wame af Sharehoaldor

March 41, 2020 March 31, 2049
GMR Airports Limited, helding company 1,i19.69 1,019.69
101.97 (March 31, 2019; 101.97) aquity shates
Details of Sharebolders holding mora than 5% of equity shares in the Comipany
Match 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Masse ok Shusuholds Nowstin Lakts] Sahalding Nosllndakhs)  %holding
Pouity shares of Ra 10, each fully paid up
GMR Airports Limited 10197 100% 10187 100%

Honus sharest
Agprepate number of equity shares {ssued 4s bonus, for consideration other than cash duting the period of five years immediataly preceding the reporting date:

Agpregale mumber of  Aggregate nisber of
equity shares Issued as shases ontatanding

bounus
At March 31, 2019 = - 106,00
Af March 31, 2013 50.98 106,00
Af March 31, 2017 - 50.58
Al March %1, 2016 - 5098
Al March 31, 2043 - 50.98

As per records of the Company including Hs register of share holders/members and other declaraticens received from share helders regarding beneficial interesl, the atuve
share holding represents both legal and beneficial cwnerslep of shares,




GMR Atrpori Developers Limited

CIN: Us2200TG2008P LCO53646

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(Al amounts in Indlan Rupees lakhs, except 43 othervise stated)

19A. Other equity

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

1

Surplus in the statement of profif and Insg

Baiance as per last financial statements 353206 372353
Add: Net profit for the year ., '1,732.463 424,16
Wet sarpius In the statemnent of profit and loss 5,264.69 4,146.71
Less: Appropriations
Dividend 917.72 509.85
DDT on dividend 188.64 104 80
415833 353206
Other {tems of Comprehensive Income
Re-measurenent of post employmeit beneflt obligaiona {143.75) (63.02)
401458 347104
Securities premium account 510,69 51065
Tatal reserves and surplie £525.27 3973

138, Distribution made and propoaed

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2013

Cash dividends on equity chares declared and patd:

Final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2020: K8.9 per share {31 March 2015 Ra.5) 5i7.72 509.85
DI on Anal dividend 188.64 10480
130636 G

Fraposed dividends on equity shaves are subject to approval at the annual general meeting and re not recognised a5 a liabflity (including DDT thereon) as at
31 March,




GMR Airport Developers Limited

CIN; Us2200TG2004PLC052646

MNotes {o the financiaf statements for the year ended Murch 31, 2020
(All amounts in Indian Rupees lakhs, except as ntherwisa stated)

14. Financial Habilities
A. Borrovwlngs
[Non = Cuteent Cuerent
March 31, 2020 Warch 31, 2019 March 31,2020  March 31, 2019

Yerm loan (secuwed)
Prom Bank:
Indian tixpee berm loan from banks * - 526,72 52672 228989
From others;
Bhors teren loan from related party * - - 1,500.00 -

- 326,72 242672 223989
*“Indirn rupse term loan from & bank carrles interest rate 0f 1225% (March 31, 2019 : 12.25% p.a.). The [oan is repayable in 28 g ly instalments cor ing from

December 23, 2013, The loan is secured by first exclusive charge on the Companya loans and advances, current pasets, cash flows and Interest on infer carpcmt; depesits/

sub debt

g coTporate g fram QMR Infrastracture Limited and GMR Airports Limited.

* Indian rupee terrnioan Erom related party Celebt Delhi Cargo Terménal Management Private Litnited carries interest rate of 9% (March 31, 201% ; Nil p.a). The loaz &

repayable on 17th September 2020,

B. Lease liabilities

Non - Cureent Currgnt
Pelarch 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Lease liabillties-Right of use nssefa 90,52 - g | -
2057 - Pt =

C.Trede payables

Cuwrrent
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Trade payables 2,535,724 2,374.38
Trade payables to related parties 13837 234.26
2,673.11 2,608.63

‘The Company has net daelt with any parly as defined under the provisions of Micro, Small and Medlum Enterprises Development Act, 2006 during the year.

Terms and conditioun of the above financial Habilities:
(i) Teede peyables are non-interest boaring and are nerrally settfed on 30 to 60-day tetms
{i)The dues 2o related party are unsecured and are normally payable within 30 daya frors the date of recelpt of demend

(if)For explanations on the Company’s credit risk management processes, relor to Note 32

D. Othet Flnancia] liabililirs Nodr~furrent Current
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 March 51, 2020  March 31, 2019

At amortised cost

Retention money - - 7085 81.32

Advances from customers - S g J

Current maturities of long term borrewings : - - 52672 2,289.89

Security deposit received 576.32 873,84 77381 378.95
+ Capltal ereditory . - .- 1541 222

Interest accrued and due on borrowirgs® L, = E 1002 34.50

Tokal other fnancial Babilitles 57632 873.84 139682 2,786.88

o Represenu' amolint not debited by bank in the current account, inspite of availability of sufficient funds i the account.

15, Other Lahilittes

Others
Deferred income 8340 16461 89.88 8321
Tax decluctex] at source/Tax Collected at source payable - - 141.30 87.40
Other statitory dues - - 37246 536.31
85,40 16R61 60354 071z
16, Provigions
March 31, 202D March 31, 2M%
Provision for employee benefits
Frovision for compensated absences{nate 26c) 1,426.60 1,187,58
Provision for superannuation fund o 1Te2 1721
180,53 818"

Provision for gratuity{note 26b)
Provislon fo income tax (Net}

1,624,516




GMR Atrporet Developers Limited

CIN: U62200TG2008PLC059646

Nates to the financhl stafanents for the year ended March 3%, 2020
{All amounta in Indian Rupees Jakhs, except as otheswlsn stated)

17, Income Tax

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

A, The mafor camponents of Incorne tax expense are

Statement of profit and loss:
Current Inzone ks
Current income tax charge 78101 200,25
Current income tax charge earhier years 135.82) (80.20)
Deferred taxt
Relating to origi and reversal of lemporary differances {104,15) (43.62)
Income tax exp reported in the afat f of profit or loss 641.04 Thdd

B. Reconcillation of fax expense and ¢he sccounting profit multiplied by India's domestic kax rate for 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Acconating prafit 237367 §00.60

Tax at the applicable fex rafe of 29.12% (31.3.201%; 27,82%4) 691,21 13927
ax effect of incos at ave not tax; i ble profi

expendituse that are not pers of Book profit:.

NeHanal Ind AS adjuatments (23.33) (5147)

effect of exper 2 iy {axabie profit:

Provision for Impalrment in value of i in shares of subsidiary company = -

Danstions - §0G 599 B3

Bifect of change in tax rate (33.83) {15.19)

Income fax exp j; d in the gtat $of profit and loss 62104 76,44

C. Deferred tax:

March 51, 2620 March 31, 2019

Treferrad tax Hablity

Fixed assets; Tmpact of difference between tex depreciation and depreciation / w05 o
amortieation charged for the financial reporting - i
On aceount of upfront fees being amartlzed using KIR method 17.86 42,65
Fair value of mvestment in mutual fund 031 -
Gross deferved fax Hability 8.42 4298
Deferred fax asset

Onaccount of expenditure charged to the statement of profit and loss bui allowed for 11543 34582
tax purnoses on payment basis. B 3
Grass DTA 41543 34582
Mot deferred tax {Hability)/asset 407.01 z8a

The cotnpany offsets lax assets and ilabilities 1f and only if it has 2 legully enforceable right to set off current tax asscts anct cutrent tax Uabilities and the
deferved tax assets and deferred tax Habilities relate 1o Income taxes levied by the same tax authority.




GMR Adrport Developers Limited

CIN: U62200T G2008PLC059646

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
{All amoants in Indian Rupees lakhs, except as otherwlse stated}

18, Revenue from contracts with customers
Disaggregated revenme information
Set out below is the disaggregation of the Company’s revenue from contracts with customers:

For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Type of goods or service
Sale of Traded goods 1,093.22 1449.01
Manpower services 11,61526 9,839.36
Management consultancy services 2,480.86 286002
Maintenance services 343,61 208.19
Total revenue from contrarts with eustomers 15,532.95 14,356,58
India 15,532.95 14,113.24
Qutgide India . - 243,34
Total revenue from contracts with customers 15,532.95 14,356.58
Timing of xevenue recognition
Goods transferred at a point in Hime 1,093.22 1449,01
Services tranaferred over time 14,439.75 1290757

Total revenue from contracts with customers 15,532.95 14,356,558

Set out below, i the reconciliation of the revenue from contracts with custorners with the amounts disclosed in the

segment information
Forthe yearended  For the year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
External customer 15,6532.95 14,356.58
Total revente from contracts with customers ) 15,532.95 14,356.58

18,8 Revenne recognised in the statement of profi¢ and loss and the contracted price are the same.

19, Other income

Forthe yearended  For the year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Amortisation of deferred income ) 17642 148.40
Profit on sale of current investments (other than trade) 43.73 115.10
Income arising from fair valuation of investment in mutual fund a.08 4.41)
Gain on account of exchange fuctuations{net) = 7.63
Other non-opetating income 8.04 10.61

23127 37742

20, Finance income

Forthe yearended  For the year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Intereston
Bank deposits 15.06 515
Inter corporate deposits 971.73 999.79
Others 70.57 28.88
TU57.35 LU33.83

214, Cost of traded goods sold
For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Inventory at the beginning of the year 2538 7.57
Add; Purchases 979.21 1,348.96
1,004.59 1,354.53
Less: Inventory at the end of the year 25.38

Cost of traded goods sold 1,004,589 133115




GMER Alrport Developers Limited
CIN: U62200T G2008PLC059646
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended Mareh 31, 2020
{All amounts in Indian Rupees lakhs, except as vtherwise stated)
21B. {Incrense)/decrease in tnventories
. . . Fortheyearended Forthe year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Tnventories at the end of the year

Traded goods - 2538
- - 2538
Fnventories at the beginning of the year
Traded goods 25.38 757
25.38 7.57
Increase decrease in inventories 25.38 (17.81)
22, Employes benefits expense

For the yearended  For the year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2018

Salaries, wages and bonus* 9,265.71 7,904.52
Contribution to provident and other funds (note 26a) 627.79 561.71
Gratuity expenses(note 26b) 10913 129.09
Staff welfare expenses™ 278.21 25349

. 10,280,84 8,888.81

* Net of relmbutsements of Rs.10.43 (March 31, 2019: Rs.69.18)
** Net of reimbursements of ¥.5.50 (March 31, 2019: Rs.1.45)

23, Other expenses

Por the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Directors” sitting feea (note 28) 3.05 3.50
Operating and Maintenance Expenses 34671 247.52
Rent 65.54 641.77
Rates and texes 116 466
Insurance 520 430
Repairs and malidenance

Other 20227 3481
Communication costs™ 11.90 781
Printing and stationery 128 37
Consultancy & Professional Fees 44935 418,90
Travelling end Conveyance * 26732, 38010
Payment to auditors(refer details below) 1061 1055
Exchange difference {net) 0.9 -
Recruitment and training cost **+* 72.54 §7.08
Logo fees 99,45 0207
Provision for impairment in value of investments in shares of subsidiary - -
company
CSR expenditure (refer details below) 16.00 2254
Donatlons 3199 540
Donation to political parties E 200,00 1,950.00
Advertising - sponsorships 100.50 300.00
Miscellaneous expenses 1115 11.81

189632 429741

* Net of reimbursements of Rg, 47,05 {(March 31, 2019; Rs, 32.96)
** Net of refmbursements of Rs, 7.28 (March 31, 2019: Ra. 2.77)
** Net of relmbursements of Rs. (.17 (March 31, 2(19: Rs.0.34)

For the year ended  For the year ended

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Payment to Auditors :
As Andfior: )
Statutory audit fee 5.00 7.50
Other services:
Other services 435 2.50
Reimbursement of expenses 0.26 .55




GMR Airport Developers Limited

CIN;: 1J62200TG2008PLC059546

Notes (o the fihancial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(All ammounts in Indian Rupees lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

Details of CSR expenditure:

a) Gross amount reguired to be spent by the Company during the year

{b) Amount spent in cash
i)  Construction/acquisition of any asset
i) Onpurposes othet than (f) above

() Amount yet to be spent in cash
i)  Construetion/acquisition of any asset
if} On purposes other than (i) above

{d) Total amount spent during the year
i)  Construction/acquisition of any asset
i) Onpurposes other than (i) above

24. Finance Costs

Interest expense
Interest on debt and borrowlngs

Bank charges

25, Depreciation

Depreciatien of property, plant and equipment{note 3}
Depreciation of right of use assets{pote 3)
Amortisation of intangible assets(note 4)

1

For the yearended  Forthe year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

16.00

16.00

16.00

22.54

2254

254

For the yearended  For the year ended

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
524,91 651.29
4,03 3.21
528.94 65450

Por the yearended  For the yeor ended

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
69.56 65.54

667.66 a
- 012
737.22 65.66
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1. Corporate Information

GMR Airport Developers Limited (GADL) (“the Company”) was incorporated on June 13, 2008 in India. GADL
is Involved in the business of providing specialized manpower, management services and supply and
installation of IT equipment in the area of project management and operation of the Alrport.

Information on other related party relationships of the Company is provided in Note 28,

The financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors passed
in the Board Meeting held on June 18, 2020,

2. Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indlan Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended
from time to time and presentation requirements of Division Il of Schedule lll to the Companies Act, 2013,
(Ind AS compliant Schedule lil), as applicable to the financial statements, The financial statements have been
prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain financial assets and liabilities (refer accounting policy
regarding financlal instruments) which have been measured at fair value.

Accounting potlicies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is
initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change In the accounting policy
hitherto in use.

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (“Rs.”) and all the values are rounded to the nearest
Lakhs, except when otherwise indicated.

2.1 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

New and amended standards

Ind AS 116 Leases

On March 30, 2019, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs {(MCA) issued the Companies {Indian Accounting

Standards) Amendment Rules, 2019 which notified Ind AS 116 - Leases. The amendment rules are effective
from reporting periods beginning on or after April 01, 2019. This standard replaces current guidance under
Ind AS 17,

The standard sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases
and requires lessees to account for all leases under a single on-balance sheet modal.

" Company as a Lessor:

Company is not praviding any lease services hence no impact.
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Company as a Lessee:
Right-of-use assets

The Company recoghises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease {i.e., the date the
underlying asset Is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any re-measurement of lease liabilities. The cost of
right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease labilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease
payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received, Unless the
Company is reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the leased asset at the end of the lease term, the
recognised right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated
useful life and the lease term. Right-of-use assets are subject ta impairment.

Lease llabilltles

At the commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes lease liabilities measured at the present value
of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including
in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivahle, variable lease payments that depend on
an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments
also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and
payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising the option
to terminate. The variable (ease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as
expense in the period on which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses the Incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date if the interest rate Implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and
reduced for the |lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amaount of lease liabilities is remeasured if
there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the in- substance fixed lease payments or a
change in the assessment to purchase the underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and -
equipment {i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and
— donotcontainapurchase option).t also-applies the lease of low-value-assetsrecognition-exemption o
leases of office equipment that are considered of low value (i.e., below Rs. 50,000). Lease payments on
short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the

lease term.

Transition provisions:

The Company adopted Ind AS 116 using the modified retrospective method of adoption with the date of
Initial application as 1 April 2019, Under this method, the standard is applled retrospectively with the
cumulative effect of initially apglying the standard recognised at the date of initial application. The Company
elected to use the transition practical expedient allowing the standard to be applied only to contracts that
were previously identified as leases applying Ind AS 17 at the date of initial application.
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The Company also elected to use the recognition exemptions for [ease contracts that, at the commencement
date, have a lease term of 12 months or less and do not contain a purchase option {'short-term leases’), and
lease contracts for which the underlying asset is of low value {‘low-value assets’),

Leases previously accounted for as operating ieases

The Company recognised right-of-use assets and leasé labilities for those leases previously classified as
operating leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The right-of-use assets for
most leases were recognised based on the carrying amount as if the standard had always been applied, apart
from the use of incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial application. In some leases, the right-of-use
assets were recognised based on the amount equal to the lease liabilities, adjusted for any related prepaid
and accrued lease payments previously recognised. Lease liabilities were recognised based on the present
value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial
application.

The Company also applied the available practical expedients wherein it:

¢ Used a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with reasonably similar characteristics

* Relied on its assessment of whether leases are onerous immediately before the date of initial application

» Applied the short-term leases exemptions to leases with lease term that ends within 12 months at the
date of initial application.

* Excluded the initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of initial
application

» Used hindsight in determining the lease term where the contract contains options to extend or terminate
the lease.

Based on the faregoing, as at 1 April 2019;

» Right-of -use assets of Rs.982.39 lakhs were recognised and presented separately in the statement of
financial postion. ’

* Lease liabilities of Rs.931.78 lakhs were recognized and presented separately in the statement of financial
position.

* Prepayments of Rs.50.61 lakhs outstanding as at April 1, 2019 were derecognized.

2.2 Significant accounting Judgments, estimates and assumptions

A, Judgements

in the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following
judgements, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements.
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Discounting rate

The Company has considered Incremental borrowing rate of Airport sector at 10.73% per annum {March
2019: 9.65%) as at transition date for measuring deposits, being financial assets and financial liabilities, at
amartized cost.

Tax

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax [osses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the
level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Company applied the foliowing judgements that significantly affect the determination of the amount
and

timing of revenue from contracts with custorers:

Identifying performance obligations in o bundled sale of equipment and installation services

Before the adoption of Ind AS 115, the Group accounted for the equipment and installation service as a
single performance obligation within bundled sales. Under Ind AS 115, the Group assessed that the
installation service is not distinct as there is no future performance obligation for installation services to be
provided,

B. Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainity at the reporting
date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year, are described below:

Befined employee benefit plans

The cast of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment medical benefits and the present
value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves

making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the
determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities
involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes

T Hese =

The parameter most subject to change is the discaunt rate. in determining the appropriate discount rate for
plans operated in India, the management considers the interest rates of government bonds in currencies
consistent with the currencies of the post-employment benefit abligation.
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The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for the specific countries. Those mortality
tables tend to change only at interval in response to demagraphic changes. Future safary increases and
gratuity increases are based on expected future inffation rates for the respective countries.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be
measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation technigues
including the DCF model. The Inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible,
but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements
include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about
these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments. See note 30 for further
disclosures.

Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities may arise from the ordinary course of business in relation to claims against the
Company, including legal, contractor, land access and other claims. By their nature, contingencies will be
resolved only when one or more uncertain future events accur or fail to occur. The assessment of the
existence, and potential quantum, of contingencies inherently invelves the exercise of significant judgement
and the use of estimates regarding the outcome of future events. See note 27 for further disclosures

2.3 Significant Accounting Policies
a. Use of estimates

The preparation of financfal statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the managemant to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities and the disclasure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting year. Although these
estimates are based on the management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about
these assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets or liabifities in future periods.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the re porting

date, that have a Sighificant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year, are described helow. The Company based its assumptions and
estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Ex:stmg circumstances
and nccumnhnnc o B o ave . - T 5

circimstances arising that are beyond the controi of the Company Such changes are reﬂected in the
assumptions when they occur.

a) Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current
classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:
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i) Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle,
ii) Held primarily for the purpose of trading,
 iif) Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or
iv) Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least
twelve months after the reperting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.
A liabllity is current when It Is:

i. Expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

ii. Held primarily for the purpose of trading

iii. Due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

iv. Thereis nounconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the repo.
period.

All other [iabilities as non-current, Deferred tax assets and liahilities are classified as non-current assets and
liabilities.

The aperating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash
and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

b) Property, plant and equipment:

All items of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulaied depreciation,
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Capital work in progress includes cost of property, plant and equipment under installation/under development
as at the bhalance sheet date, Property, plant and equipment under installation ar under construction as at
halance sheet are shown as capital work-in-progress, intangible assets under development as at balance sheet
date are shown as intangible assets under development and the related advances are shown as loans and
advances.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic henefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and

g5t5 B Py, cArrying-amott-otany-cormao otintec 1o

separate asset is derecognised when replaced. Further, when each major inspection is performed, its cost is
recognised in the carrying amount of the item of property, plant and equipment as a replacement if the
recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit and loss during the
reporting period in which they are incurred.

The Company identifies and determines cost of each component / part of the asset separately, if the component
/ part has a cost which is significant to the total cost of the asset having useful life that is materially different
from that of the remaining asset.
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An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initlally recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future ecanomic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset {calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

¢) Depreciation on Property, plant and equipment

Depreciation on the Property, plant and equipment is calculated on a straight-line basis using the rates arrived
at, based on useful lives estimated by the management, which coincides with the lives prescribed under
Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013 except for assets individually costing less than Rs. 5,000 which are fully
depreciated in the year of acquisition. The management believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic
and refiect fair approximation of the period over which the assets are likely to be used.

The following useful lives for various categories of property, plant and equipment’s are adopted by the

Company:
Particulars Useful life (years)
201%-20 2018-19
ieasehold improvements 34 3
Furniture & Fixtures 10 10
Electrical  fittings & 10 10
equipment
Plant and machinery 15 15
Mater vehicles 8 8
Computers and data 3to6 3tob
processing units

These components are depreciated over their useful lives; the remaining asset Is depreciated over the fife of
the principal asset.

Leasehold Improvements and buildings on leasehold land are amortised over shorter of estimated useful lives
or lease period.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at

each iinancial year end ahd adjusted prospectively, if appropfiate.

d} Intangible assets:

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initfal recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination Is their fair value at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amostization and accumulated Impalrment losses.
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e) Amortization of intangible assets

The amortization period and the amortization method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are
reviewed at least at the end of each year. Cost relating to software licenses, which are acquired, are capitalized
and amortized on a straight — line basis over their useful life not exceeding six years.

Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits
embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortization periad or methad, as appropriate, and are
treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortization expense on intangible assets with finite lives Is
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit or loss
when the asset is derecognized.

f) Impairment of nan-financial assets:

The Company assasses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired.
If any indication exists, or when annual impalrment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the
asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s
{CGUs) net selling price and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets ar
groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is
considered impaired and is written down to Its recoverable amaunt.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre—
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of maney and the risks specific to
the asset. In determining net selling price, recent market transactions are taken into account, if available. If na
such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. An assessment is made at each reporting
date to determine whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment losses no fonger exist
or have decreased. If such indication exists, the company estimates the asset’s or CGU's recoverable amount.
A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used
to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is
el imited arrying ) 3 Rotexeeeditsrecoverable-amoaun f
carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

s ha h NE-37 r . =G g & oY S3r 7 g

After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining
useful life.

g} Inventories

The cost of traded goods includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition. Cost is determined on weighted average basis.
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h) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of
the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of
interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

i} Provisions, contingent llabilities and commitments

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of 3
past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Company
expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the
reimhursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain,

Contingent liability is disclosed in the case of:

* A present obligation arising from past events, when it is not probabie that an outflow of resources will not
be required to settle the obligation

* A present obligation arising from past events, when it cannot be measured reliably.

* A possible obligation arising from past events, unless the probability of outflow of resources is remote

The Company does not recognize a contingent liahility but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

Commitments include the amount of purchase order (net of advances) issued to parties for completion of
assets. Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments are reviewed at each balance
sheet date.

i) Retirement and other employee benefits

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has no
obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund, The Company recognizes contribution
payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the related service. If the
contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the
contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a Hability after deducting the

& dv paid ar-daeTarsendeaseseiot—

before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will
lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

The Company recognizes contribution payable as expenditure, when an employee renders the related service.
If the contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the reporting date exceeds the
contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the
contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received
before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will
lead to, for example. a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.
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Retirement benefit in the form of Superannuation Fund and Employee State Insurance are defined
contribution schemes and the contributions are charged to the statement of profit and loss of the year when
the contributions to the respective funds are due. The Company has no obligation, other than the contribution
payable to the respective funds.

The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in India, which requires contributions to be made to a
separately administered fund. The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan Is determined
based on actuarial valuation using projected unit credit method.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts
included in net interest on the net defined benefii liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts
included in net interest on the net defined benefit {iability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet
with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur.
Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:

i) The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
i) The date that the Company recognizes related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The
Company recognizes the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the
statement of profit and loss:

i) Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-
routine settlements; and

ii} Netinterest expense or income
Short term employee henefits
Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next twelve months, is treated as short-term

employee benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that
it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date.

o-eno ad o ho od-fo d-bevond 0

& 0

employee henefit for measurement purposes. Such leng-term compensated absences are provided for based
on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the year-end. Actuarial gains/losses are
immediately taken to the statement of profit and loss and are not deferred.

However, the Company presents the entire provision towards accumulated leave as-a current liability in the
balance sheet, since it does not have an unconditional right to defer its settlement for twelve months after

the reporting date.




GMR Airport Developers Limited

CIN: Us2200TG2008PLC059646

Notes to the financial statemnents for the year ended March 31, 2020
(All amounts in Indian Rupees lakhs, except-as otherwise stated)

k) Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or
equity instrument of ancther entity.

A} Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement:

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair
value through other comprehensive income (OCI), and falr value through profit or toss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash
flow characteristics and the Company’s business mode! for managing them. The Company’s business
model for managing financial assets refers to how It manages its financial assets in order to generate cash
flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash
flows, selling the financial assets, or both.

With the exception of trade recelvables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which
the Company has applied the practical expedient, the Company initially measures a financlal asset at its
fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs.
Trade recelvables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Company has
applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price determined under Ind AS 115. Refer

. to the accounting policies in sectien (r) Revenue from contracts with eustomers,

Subsequent measurement:

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

- Debt instruments at amortized cost

- Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FYTOC)

- Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
- Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income {FYTOCI)

* Debt Instruments at amortized cost:

Aldebtinstrument’ is measured-at-the amertized-cost-if both-the following-conditions-are-met:

a} The asset is held within a business mode! whose objective is to hold assets for collécting contractual
cash flows, and
b} Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of

principal and interest (SPP) on the principal amount outstanding.

This category is the most relevant to the Company. After initial measurement, such financial assets are
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method.

Amortized cost Is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium en acquisition and fees ar
costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization Is included in finance income in the profit
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or loss. The losses arising from Impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. This category generally
applies to trade and other receivables.

Debt instrument at FVTOCI:

A ‘debt instrument’ [s classified as at the FVTOC! if both of the following criterfa are met:

a) The abjective of the busingss model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash fiows and selling
the financial assets, and

h} The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting
date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income {OCI).
However, the Company recognizes interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange
gain or loss in the statement of profit and loss. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in OCl is reclassified from the equity to statement of profit and loss. Interest earned
whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method.

Debt instrument at FVTPL:

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which dees not meet the criteria
for categorization as at amortized cost or as FYTQCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized
cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FYTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or
eliminates a measurement or recagnition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’}.

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair velue with all changes
recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition:

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognized {I.e, removed from the balance sheet) when:

a. The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

b. The company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obiigation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-
through’ arrangement; and either {i} the company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards

of the asset, or (i) the company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset, but has transferred contral of the asset.

When the company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of
ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the
asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the company continues to recognize the transferred asset to
the extent of the company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the company also recognizes an
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associated [fability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects
the rights and obligations that the company has retained,

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the
Company could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets:

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement
and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

a. Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortized cost e.g., loans, debt

securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance

Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at FVTOC

Lease receivables under Ind AS 17

d.  Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from
transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 11 and tnd AS 18

e. Loan commitments which are not measured as at FYTPL

f. Financial guarantee contracts which are not measured as at FVTPL

oo

The company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on;
a.  Trade receivables or contract revenue receivables; and
b.  All lease recelvables resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind AS 17

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk.
Rather, It recognizes impairment loss allowance based on [ifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from
its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the company determines
that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk
has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit
risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. if, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the
instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial

"!: mentloss.alowance based-on month

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected
life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default

events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the company in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted
at the ariginal EIR. When estimating the cash flows, the Company is required to consider:

a.  All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension, call and simifar
options) over the expected life of the financial instrument. However, in rare cases when the
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expected life of the financial instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the entity is required to
use the remaining contractual term of the financial instrument

b.  Cash flows from the sale of collateral held ar other credit enhancements that are integral to the
contractual terms

As a practical expedient, the Company evaluates individual balances to determine impairment loss
allowance on its trade receivables. The evaluation is based on its historically observed default rates over
the expected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At every reporting
date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are
analyzed.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/
expense in the statement of profit and loss {P&L). This amount is reflected under the head ‘other
expenses’ in the P&L. The balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments is described below:

® Financial assets measured as at amortized cost and contractual revenue receivables: ECL is
presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the measurement of those assets In the
balance sheet. The allowance raduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off
criteria, the Company does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

For assessing credit risk and impairment loss, the company combines financial instruments on the basis
of shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable
significant increases in credit risk to be identified on a timely basis.

v. Equity Investments:

All equity investments in scope af Ind AS 108 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are
held for trading and contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to
which Ind AS103 applies are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Company may
make an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair
value. The Company makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made
on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the

—  —instrument-excluding dividendsare-recognized-in-the-0CkThere-is-no-reeydling of- the-amounts-from-0 €} ——
to statement of profit and loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may transfer the
cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with al} changes
recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

B) Financial liabilities

I. Initial recognition and measurement:
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Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognitfon, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivativas designated as hedging instruments in an effective
hedge, as appropriate. '

All financial lfabilities are recognised Initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company's financial liabilitles include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including cash
credit, financial guarantee cantracts and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement;
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
Financial liahilitles at fair value through profit or loss:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and
financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit ar loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in
the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company
that are not designated as hedging Instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109. Separated
embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruements,

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated
as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied.

For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are
recognized in OCI. These gains/ loss are not subsequently transferred to P&L. However, the Company may
transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss. The Company has not designated any financial Hability as at
fair value through profit and loss.

'™
ik

Loans and borrowings:

This is the category most relevant to the company. After Initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and

borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization
process.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or
costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance costs in the statement
of profit and loss. This category generally applies to borrowings. For more information refer Nate 14,
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iv. Derecognition:

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expired. When an existing financial lizbility is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing llabillty are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new llabilfty.
The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

C} Reclassification of financial assets

The company determines classification of financial assets and labflities on initial recognition. After initial
recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and financial
liabifities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is a
change in the business madel for managing those assets. Changes to the business model are expected to
be infrequent. The company’s senior management determines change in the business model as a result
of external or internal changes which are significant to the company’s operations. Such changes are
evident to external parties. A change in the business model occurs when the company either begins or
ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its operations. If the company reclassifies financial
assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of
the immediately next reporting period following the change in business model. The Company does not
restate any previously recognised gains, losses {including impairment gains or losses} or interest.

D) Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the consolidated

balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liahilities simultaneously.

1) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits
with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an Insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and shor-term
deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the

—  Compamys-cash-management.

m} Cash dividend to equity holders

The Company recognizes a liability to make cash distributions to equity holders when the distribution is
authorized and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company. As per the Companies Act, 2013,
a distribution is authorized when it is approved by the shareholders. A corresponding amount is recognised
directly in equity.
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n) Foreign currency transactions:

Functional and presentation currency
The financial statements are presented in INR (indian rupees), which is the functional currency of the
Company and the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company operates.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at their respective functional
currency spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition. However, for practical reasons,
the Company uses an average rate Iif the average approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency
spot rates of exchange at the reporting date.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.

o} Fair value measurement
The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on
the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

I. In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
ii. In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

Afair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

' The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing

the USE Of Unobservable Inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financlal statements are
categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Levet 1 — Quoted {unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or [iabilities
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Level 2 — Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that Is significant to the fair value
measurement Is directly or indirectly observable

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable,

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financlal statements on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categarization
{based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.

The management determines the policies and procedures far both recurring fair value measurement, such
as derivative instruments and unquoted financial assets measured at fair value, and for non-recurring
measurement, such as assets held for distribution in discontinued operations.

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets, such as properties and unquated financial
assets, and significant liabilities, such as contingent consideration. Involvement of external valuers is decided
upon by the management. Selection criteria include market knowledge, reputation, independence and
whether professional standards are maintained. The management decides, after discussions with the
company's external valuers, which valuation techniques and inputs to use for each case.

At each reporting date, the management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabillties which
are required to he remeasured or re-assessed as per the Company’s accounting palicies, For this analysis, the
management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the
valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents.

The management, in conjunction with the Company’s external valuers, also compares the change in the fair
value of each asset and liability with relevant external sources to determine whether the change is
reasonable.

For the purpose af fair value disclosures, the Company-has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the
basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the |level of the fair value hierarchy
as explained above.

“This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the
relevant notes.

a) Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions {note 30)
b) Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy {note 31)
t) Financial instruments (including those carried at amortized cost) (note 30}

p} Revenue from contract with customer:

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred
to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services. The company, has generally concluded that it is the principal in its
revenue arrangements, except for the agency services below, because it typically controls the goods or
services befare transferring them to the customer.
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Sale of equipment

Revenue from sale of material is recognised at the point in time when control of the asset is transferred to
the customer, generally on delivery of the equipment. The normal credit term is 30 days upon delivery.

The Company considers whether there are other promises in the contract that are separate performance
obligations to which a portion of the transaction price needs to be allocated (e.g., warranties, customer loyalty
points). In determining the transaction price for the sale of equipment, the Company considers the effacts of
varigble consideration, the existence of significant financing components, noncash consideration, and
consideration payable to the customer (if any).

Installation sarvices

Before the adoption of Ind AS 115, the Group accounted for the equipment and installation service as a
single performance abligation within bundled sales. Under Ind AS 115, the Group assessed that the
installation service is not distinct as there is no future performance obligation for installation services to be

provided,
Interest income

Interest an afl debt instruments measured either at amortized cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income, interest income is recarded using the effective interest rate (EIR). FIR is the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or to
the amortized cost of a financial lfability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates
the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial Instrument (for example,
prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses. Interest
income is included in finance income in the statement of profit and loss.

q) Taxes on income
Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax.

2. Current income tax;

L - i [) = dX d = d .-" di'e fedoUled d = d oU A LE =L Y UG CCOVeEragd OTi) U
paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are
enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss
(either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current and deferred tax items are recognised in
correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.
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b. Deferred tax:

Deferred tax is provided using the liabiiity method on temporary differences between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and thelr carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date,

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

(1} In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and
interests in joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the tempaorary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temparary differences, the carry forward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry
forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

{il) when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of
the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

{iii) in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates
and interests in Joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that
the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date
and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expecied to apply in the year
when the asset is realized or the lability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Befarred ot . - ” e orloss ised-piield 4 (et
in other comprehensive income or in equity}. Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the
underlying transaction either in OCl or directly in equity.

Deferred tax on adjustments recognised on account of adoption of Ind AS are not considered as these
adjustments get reversed in the subsequent periods and have no impact on the accounting or tax profit.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liahilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity
and the same taxation authority.
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GST paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses
Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST paid, except:

i. When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation
authority, in which case, the tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as
part of the expense item, as applicable

il. When recefvables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of
raceivables or payables in the balance sheet.

r) Segment reporting

For management purposes, the Company is organized into business units based on its products and services
and has two reportable segments, as follows:

¥ The Services segment, which includes providing specialized manpowaer, management services in the area
of project management and operation of the Airport

» The Traded goods segment, which includes supply and installation of IT equipment required in the area of
project management and operation of the Airport.

No operating segments have been aggregated to form the abave reportable operating segments.
s} Earnings per share

Basic Earnings per Share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

The welghted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for banus issue that
have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating Diluted Earnings per Share, the net profit or ioss for the period attributable to
—————equity sharcholdars-and-the-weighted-average-numbersfsharesoutstanding during the-period-are-adjusted ——

for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

t)  Corporate Social Responsibility:

The Company charges its Corporate Social Responsibility {CSR) expenditure to the Statement of Profit & Loss
Account.
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26. Earnings per share (EPS):

The following reflects the profit and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 |

Profit attributable to equity holders for basic and 1732.63 424.16
diluted earning ‘

Weighted Average number of equity shares used for 101.97 101.97
computing Earning Per Share {Basic and diluted)*

Earnings Per Share {Basit and diluted) (Rs) 16.99 4.16
Face value per share (Rs} 10,00 10.00

26. Retirement and other employee benefits

a) Defined contribution plan:

Contribution to provident fund and superannuation fund expense are as under:

Forthe yearended  For the year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Contribution to Provident fund (Refer Note 22) 416.83 357.37
. Cantribution to Superannuation fund 210.96 204.34
627.79 561.71

b} Defined benefit plans:

Gratuity liability is a defined benefit obligation which Is funded through policy taken from Life insurance
Corporation of India and Liahility (net of fair value of investment in LIC) is provided far on the basis of an
actuarial valuation on projected unit credit method made at the end of each financial year, Evary employee
who has completed five years or more of service gets a gratuity on departure at 15 days’ salary {based on

tast drawn basic salary) for each completed year of service.

profit or loss/OCl and amounts recognized in the balance sheet for defined benefit plans/obligations:

Net employee benefit expense (recognized in Employee Cost)

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Current service cost 110.61 131.45
Interest cost an benefit obligation (1.48) {2.36)
Net benefits expense 109.13 129.09
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Amount recognlzed in Other Compreheansive Income:

For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Actuarial {gain)/loss due to DBO experience (9.73) 35,26
Actuarial (gain)/loss due to DBD assumption changes 63.12 -
Actuarial (gain)/loss arising during the year 53.39 35.26
Return on plan assets {greater}/less than discount rate 29.34 2,28
Actuarial (gains)/ losses recognized in OCI 82.73 37.54

Balance sheet

March 31,2020 March 31, 2019

Fair value of plan assets 898.74 878.76

Defined benefit chligation 1079.27 886.94

Plan liability {180.53) (8.18)
Changes In the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Opening defined benefit abligation 886.94 735.95
Interest cost 64.66 52.51
Current service cost 110.61 96.60
Acquisition cost 35.90 56.70
Benefits paid {including transfer) (72.23) (90.08)
Actuarial losses on obligation experience 53.39 35.26
Closing defined benefit abligation 1079.27 886.94
Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:
March 31,2020 March 31, 2019

Opening fair value of plan assets 878.76 617.81
Expected return on plan assets 36.81 52.59
Contributions by employer 19.50 276.59
Acquisition adjustment 35.50 Z1.85
Benefits paid (including transfer) {72.23) {90.08)
Closing fair value of plan assets 898.74 878.76

The major category of plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of total plan assets is as follows:

March 31, 2020

March 31, 2019

Investments with insurer

100%

100%
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'

Principal assumptions used In determining gratuity obligation for the Company’s plans are shown helow:

March 31, 2020  March 31, 2019
Discount rate (in %) 5.80% 7.60%
Attrition rate (in %) 5.00% 5.00%
Salary escalation rate (in %) 6.00% 6.00%

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption as at March 31, 2019 is as shown below:

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Discount rate

Effect due to 1% increase In discount rate {77.85) (62.08)
Effect due to 1% decrease in discount rate 89.65 71.25
Attrition rate 3.74 7.30
Effect due to 1% increase in attrition rate {4.42) {8.34)
Effect due to 1% decrease in attrition rate

Salary escalation rate 79.43 64.10
Effect due to 1% increase in salary increase rate {72.94) (58.27)

Effect due to 1% decrease in salary increase rate

The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on
defined benefit obligation as a result of reasonakle changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the

reporting period,

The following payments are expected contributions ta the defined benefit plan in the future years:

March 31, 2020

April 1, 2021 145.47
April 1, 2022 79.96
April 1, 2023 96.45
April 1, 2024 102.57
April 1, 2025 121,75
April 1, 2026 to April 1, 2030 886.48

The average duration af the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporiing period is 10 years

{March 31, 2019: 10 years)

¢. Liability towards compensated absence is provided based on actuarial valuation and amounts to Rs.

1,426.60 (March 31, 2019: Rs.1,187.58).
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27. Commitments and contingencies:

Contingent liabilities:

a. Matters under dispute are as follows:

The Company has received a show cause notice from the Principal Commissioner of Cantral Tax &
Customs dated April 18, 2019 for Rs.287.41 (March 31, 2019: Nil). Company has filed reply letter on
14" August 2019 to rectify the show cause notice as there is a clerical error while guantifying the

demand. Personal hearing was happened on 27" lanuary 2020.

Based on an internal assessment, Management is confident that for the above-mentioned matters, no

provision is required to be made as at March 31, 2020.

Bank guarantee outstanding in respect of GST Rs. Nil (March 31, 2019: Nil)

Capital and other commitments:

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account Rs. Nil (March 31, 2019:

Rs. Nil)

28. Details of transactions with related parties:

A.  Names of related parties and refated party relationship:

5. No.

Relationship

Related party name

)

Holding company

GMR Airports Limited (GAL)

(i1)

GAL's holding company

GMR Infrastructure Limited {GIL}

(iii)

Ukiimate holding company

GMR Enterprises Private Limited (GEPL)

(iv)

Subsidiary company

GADL {(Mauritius) Limited

{v)

Step down subsidiary company

GADL International Limited{ceased to be a step down
subsidiary on 14™ August 2019 and became Fellow
subsidiary)

LIVIK Hyderabad interpational Alrport Limiied

Delhi international Airport Limited
GMR Energy Limited
GME Generation Assets Limited

{vi)

Fellow subsidiary companies

Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited
GMR Krishnagiri SEZ Limited

Kakinada SEZ Limited

GMR Aviation Private Limited

GMR Kamalanga Energy Limited

GMR Hospitality & Retail Limited

GMR Alr Cargo and Aerospace Engineering Limited
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(ALl amounts in Indian Rupees lakhs, except as otherwise stated) -

GMR Hyderabad Aviation SEZ Limited

GMBR Hyderabad Aerotropolis Limited

GMR Highways Limited

GMR Chennai Outer Ring Road Private Limited

GMR Tuni Anakapalli Expressways Private Limited

GMR Hyderabad Vijayawada Expressways Private Limited
GMR Consulting Services Pyt Limited

GMR Infrastructure (Singapore) Pte Limited

Raxa Security Services Limited

GMR Goa International Airport Limited

Padmapriya Properties Private Limited

GMR Corporate Affairs Private Limited

Celebi Delhi Cargo Terminal Management India Private
Limited '

Travel Food Services (Delhi Terminal 3) Private Limited
Ms.Ramadevi Bommidala-Whole time director — Resigned
on 31% May 2019

Mr.GBS Raju-Additional director

Mr.RSSLN Bhaskarudu-Independent director

(viii} Key management parsonnel Mr.Ramamurti Akella-Independent director

Mr.Gadi Radha Krishna Babu-Additional director
Mr.Prabhakara Rao Indana-Additional director
Mr.B.K.Kameswara Rao-Chief Executive Officer
Mr.N.Gopala Krishna Murty-Chief Financial Officer

IV of fellow subsidiary
companies

(vii)

Private  company  having
{ix) common director (Section 8 | GMR Varalakshmi Foundation
Company)

Other entities In  which
Directors are interested

{x) GMR Family Fund Trust

Remuneration paid to Key Managerial Remuneration:

Detalls of Key Managerial Personnel For the year ended March 31, For the year ended

2020 March 31,2019 |
Short Sitting | Others | Short Sitting | Others
Term Fees Term Fees
Employee Employ
benefits ee
benefits
Mrs. Ramadevi Bommidala — Whole time 11.52 - 10.75 59.35 - -
director
Mr.GBS Raju-Additional Director - -{ 236.40 - “ -
Mr. RSSLN Bhaskarudu- independent Director - 1.40 - - 1.85 -
Mr. Ramamurti Akella-Independent Director - 1.65 - - 1.65 -
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(Al amounts in Indian Rupees lakhs, except as otherwise stated) -

8. Related party transactions:

51, No. | Particulars March 31, 2020 | March 31, 2019
(i) Unsecured loan/ deposit (repayment received)/pald
GMR Infrastructure Limited (6430.77) (1415.40)
GMR Airports Limited 5000.00 -
(ii) Loans given/({taken}
GMR Infrastructure Limited 5000.00 800.00
GMR Airports Limited (5000.00} -
Celebi Delhi Cargo Terminal Management India Private (1900.00) -
Limited :
Reimbursement of expenses claimed by the Company
(iii) from its related parties
GMR Hyderabad International Airport Limited 38.67 11.48
GMR Infrastructure (Singapore) Pte Limited 11,12 50.05
Delhi Duty free Services Private Limited 1,15 4.70
Delhi International Airport Limited 17.43 13.53
GMR Hyderabad Aviation SEZ Limited 0.05 -
GMR Hyderabad Aerotropolis Limited 2.00 4.26
GMR Infrastructure Limited - -
Padmapriya Properties Private Limited - 22.71
Kakinada SEZ Limited = -
GMR Airports Limited - 0.23
{iv} Sales of Materials
GMR Hyderabad international Airport Limited 1080.53 1034.50
Income from operations
{v) GMR Hyderabad International Airport Limited 5919.61 4993.41
Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited 103.47 219.06
GMR Air Cargo and Aero Space Engineering Limited - MRO 252.89 257.09
division ‘ a
GMR Airports Limited 233.33 700.00
GVIRHospitality & Retali Lhmited=Duty Free & Fowel 10954 23477
division
Delhi International Airport Limited 6226.90 5257.38
GWIR-Ade-Cargo-and-A gineering-timited—Carge 35:72 23
division
GMR Hyderabad Aviation SEZ Limited 19.62 2.64
GMR Hyderabad Aerotropolis Limited 282.13 76.26
GMR Goa International Airport Limited 1152.76 637.40
GMR Varalakshmi Foundation - 18.23
GMR Business School 18.22 17.18
GMR Infrastructure Limited 66.00 68.67
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(All amounts in Indian Rupees lakhs, except as otherwise stated)-

Sl No. | Particulars March 31, 2020 | March 31, 2019
{vi) Servicas received

GMR Hyderabad international Airport Limited 132.78 99.64

GMR Airports Limited 26.89 139.02

GMBR Hospitality & Retail Limited-Hotel division - 2.38

Geokno India Private Limited 40,34 -

Raxa Security Services Limited 40.15 20.08

GMR Corporate Affairs Private Limited 33.64 -

Travel Food Services (Delhi Terminal 3} Private Limited 0.27 -
{vii) Fee towards logo

GMR Enterprises Private Limited 99.65 92.97
(i) Reimbursement of expenses claimed from the Company

by its related parties

Delhi International Airport Limited 0.68 0.91

GMR Krishnagiri SEZ Limited - -

GMR Hyderabad International Airport Limited 12.64 11.40

GMR Infrastructure Limited 0.42 1.01

GMR League Games Private Limited 0.34 -

GMR Airports Limited - 3.60
{ix) Dividend paid

GMR Airports Limited 917.72 509.85
(x) Carporate Guarantee taken by the Company on behalf of

its bank agalnst the loan taken™**

GMR Infrastructure Limited {2375.00) {2250.00)

GMR Airports Limited {2375.00) {2250.00)
{xi} Interest income/(expense) on unsecured loan / inter

corporate deposit

GMR Generation Assets Limited 300.82 300.00

GMR Infrastructure Limited 670.51 699.79

GMR Airports Limited (7.40) .

Celebi Delhi Cargo Terminal Management India Private {6.09) -

Limited ]
{xii} Amortization of underwriting and upfront fee on

unsecured loan given:

GMR-Infrastrocture bimited 85 70— H66T—————
(i) Provision for impairmant in value of lnvestment

GADL (Mauritius) Limited - -
(xiv) CSR expenditure in the form of donation

GMR Varalakshmi Foundation 16.00 22.54
(xv) Donatlons

GMR Varalakshmi Foundation 24.50 -
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(All amounts in Indian Rupees lalkhs, except as otherwise stated):

S1. No. | Particulars

March 31, 2020

March 31, 2019

(xvi)

Security deposit received

GIVR Hyderabad International Airport Limitad

1500.00

{xvii)
received

Interest income on amortization of security deposit

GWMR Hyderabad International Airport Limited

80,24

1.36

(xwviii)
received

interest expense on amcttization of securlty deposit

GMR Hyderabad International Alrport Limited

118.02

198

{xix)

Right of use of asset-Interest expense

GMR Hyderabad International Airport Limited

3.19

Mr. GBS Raju

35.80

{xx)

Right of use of asset-Depreciation

GMR Hyderabad International Airport Limited

11.87

Mr. GBS Raju

228.76

Balances outstanding in related party accounts are as follows:

sl.
No.

Particulars

March 31, 2020
(Rs.)

March 31, 2019

{Rs.)

Non-Current Current

Non-Current

Current

Trade receivables / (Trade
payables):

GMR Hyderahad International
Airport Limited

- 452.25

1385.17

GMR Hospitality & Retail
Limited-Duty Free Division

= 7

6.50

Delhi International Airport
Limited

= 18.58

71.29

GMR EnterpriseS" Private

Limited

- (99.15)

(52.18)

AR Lludn-alnad_Avia;ﬁen [ of =i J
Sy rryucTod 2 —

-9
i
-

2Rl
T i ¥

Limited

GMR Hospitality & Retall
Limited-Hotel Division

= 34.06

GMR Goa International Airport
Limited

- 486.27

265.16

GMR Air Caro and Aerospace
Engineering Limited-MRO
division

E 49.83

121.03

Delhi Duty Free Services
Private Limited

24,05
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&1 Particulars
No.

March 31, 2020
(Rs.}

March 31, 2019
(Rs.)

Non-Current Current

Non-Current

Current

GMR Varalakshmi Foundation

18.25

division

GMR Air Cargo and Aerospace
Engineering Limited — Cargo

- 10.75

8.52

Raxa Security Services Limited

- T (7.78)

{3.88)

GMR School of Business

- 7.30

5.16

GMR Infrastructure Limited

- 42.56

36.38

Limited

GMR Hyderabad Aerotropolis

= 14.19

GMR Airports Limited

(57.61)

{ii} Loans given/{taken)

GMR Generation Assets Ltd***

2400.00 :

2400.00 | -

GMR Infrastructure Limited

= 4466.99

1164.40

4647.66

Celebl Delhi Cargo Terminal
Management Private Limited

- (1900.00)

(iii) | Advances Recoverable

{Singapore) Pte Limited

GMR Infrastructure

6.11

Limited

Padmapriya Properties Private

- 24.53

26.79

Limited

GMR Hyderabad Aviation SEZ

- 0.05

Alrpart Limited

GMR Hyderabad International

= 2.52

Limited

GMR Hyderabad Aerotropolis

- 0.22

GMR Infrastructure Limited

B 33.21

33.21

Defhi International

Limited

= 1,57

0.07

[iv] | Other assets

GMR  Generation
Limited

- 506.92

224.38

{v) Other financlal
Security deposit

lahilities-
recelved
recognized at amortised cost

Alrport Limited

GMR Hyderabad International

576.32

378.95
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sh. Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
No. {Rs.} {Rs.)

Non-Current Current Non-Current Current
{vi) | Other liabilities-Deferred

income on deposits received
recognized at amortised cost
GMR Hyderabad International 88.40 89,83 165.97 81.85
Airport Limited

{vii} | Investments in subsidiaries:
GADL (Mauritius) Limited* ‘ - = = =
{viii) | Right of Use (Lease assets)

Mr. GBS Raju 247.82 =1 [e= -
GMR Hyderabad International 23.75 - - -
Airport Limited

(ix) | Lease liability
Mr. GBS Raju 77.76 21733 | - =
GMR Hyderabad International 13.16 11.83 | - -

Alrport Limited

{x) Corporate guarantee availed
from the

intermediary holding
company against loan taken
from banls**

GMR Infrastructure Limited 541.66 - 2916.66 -

GMR Airports Limited 541.66 - 2916.66 -
(xi} | Corporate guarantee avalled .

from the

intermediary holding

company against equipment
took on operating lease i
GMR Infrastructure Limited 1571.25 - 1571.25 =

* The above amount is net of provision for impairment in value of investment of Rs. 83.06 {March 31, 2018:

-l
—R&B306Hr AR tetritius-Himitednote 53

** Corporate guarantee taken from the group companies is for a single loan.

29, Operating segments are reported in such a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
Chief Operating Decision Maker {'CODM’). The entity has only a single geographical segment operating in
Hyderabad, India. As per the evaluation carried out by CODM, the Company has only one reportable
business segment, i.e. operation of airport and providing allied services. Accordingly, the amounts
appearing in the Standalone Financial Statements relate to the Company’s single business segment.
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30. Fair Values

The carrying amount of all financial assets and liabilities {except for those instruments carried at fair value)
appearing in the financial statements Is reasonable approximation of fair values.

Breakup of financial assets

Particulars Carrying value Fair value
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
At Falr Value through
profit or loss
Investments 2971.08 - 2974.16 -
At amortized cost
Loans 7584.22 8752.30 7537.06 8585.63
Cther financial assets 568.04 229.25 568.04 229,25
Cash and cash 311.07 969.49 311.07 969.49
receivables
Trade receivables 122574 2305.80 1225.74 2305.80
Total 12660.15 12256.84 12616.07 12090.17
Breakup of financial liabilities

Particutars Carrying value Fair value

March 31, 2020 | March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2020 | March 21,

2019

At amortized cost
Borrowings 2447166 2916.66 2426.72 2816.61
Trade Payables 2673.11 2608.65 2673.11 2608.65
Other financial liabilities 1596.29 1618.04 1446.42 1370.83
Total 6711.06 7143.35 6546.25 6796.09

The management assessed the cash and cash equivalent, trade receivables trade payables, bank overdrafts

and other current liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturitiesof

thesa instruments.

Assumption used in estimating the fair vaiues:

The fair velue of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could
be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The
following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

The fair values of gquoted mutual funds are based on price quotations at the reporting date.
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31, Fair value hierarchy

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets and liabilities:

Date of | Total Quoted prices | Significant Significant
valuation In actlve | cbservable unohservable
markets inputs inputs
{Level 1} {Leval 2} {Level 3)
Assets measured at
fair value
At FVTPL
Investment in mutual |  31-Mar-20 2,974.16 2,974.16 - -
fund
Investment in mutual | 31-Mar-19 - - - -
fund

There have been no transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 during the period.

Valuation Techniques used to determine the Falr Vafue:
Specific valuation techniques used to value financlal instruments include the use of quoted market price of
Mutua! funds.

32. Financial risk management objectives and policies

The company’s activities expose it to variety of finance risk, market risk, credit risk and Hguidity risk, The
company’s focus Is to foresee such risks and seek to minimize potential adverse impact on its financial
performance.

Financial risk

The Company’s principal financial liabilities, other than derivatives, comprise loans and borrowings, trada and
other payables and financial guarantee contracts. The main purpose of these financial labilities is to finance
the Company’s operations and to provide guarantees to support fts operations. The Company’s principal
financial assets include loans, trade and other receivables and cash and cash eguivalents are derived from its
operations.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s management oversees the
mitigation of these risks. The Company’s management is supported by its strategic planning, treasury and
-~ = Finaree-dopartment-that-advise-on-market-risk-lirandal-risk-and-the-appropriate-financial-risk-govesnanee—
framework for the Company. The Finance department provides assurance to the Company's senlor
management that the Company’s financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures
and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company’s policies and
risk objectives. All derivative activities for risk management purposes are carried out by specialist teams that
have the appropriate skifls, experience and supervision. It is the Company’s policy that no trading in derivatives
for speculative purposes may be undertaken. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policles for managing
each of these risks, which are summarised below. >
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Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market ptices, Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and Demand
risk, Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings, Investments carried at FVTPL
and deposits.

The sensitivity analyses in the following sections relate to the position as at 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019.

The sensitivity analysis have been prepared on the basis that the amount of debt, the ratio of fixed to floating
interest rates of the debt and derivatives and the proportion of financial instruments in foreign currencies are
all constant.

The analysis exclude the Impact of movements in market variables on: the carrying values of gratuity and other
post-retirement obligations; provisions. The analysis for the contingent consideration liability is provided in
Note 27.

The following assumptions have been made in calculating the sensitivity analyses:

The sensitivity of the relevant profit or loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in respective market
risks. This is based on the financial assets and financial liabilities held as at 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily 1o the Company’s long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates.

All of Company’s borrowings are at a floating rate of interest {March 31, 2019: 100%). The Company
manages Its interest rate risk by recovering the increase in the interest from GIL {(GAL's holding company).

The exposure of the Company's borrowing to interest rate changes at the end of the reporting period:

Particulars j March 31, 2020 © March 31, 2019
Rupee term loan 541.66 2,916.66
Interest-rate sensitivity

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that
portion of loans and borrowings affected, after the impact of hedge accounting. With all other variables held
constant, the Company's profit before tax is affected through the impact on floating rate borrowings, as
follows:
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Increase in basis | {Decrease)/Increase
points of profit before tax
March 31, 2020
INR 50 {D.88)
(50) 9.88
March 31, 2019
INR 50 (21.36)
{50} 21.36
_ Fareign currency risk:

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because
of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange
rates relates primarily to the Company’s external commercial borrowings.

The Company's exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period expressed in foreign
currency is as follows:

Receivable/({payable) | 31 March, 202¢ | 31 March, | 31 March, 2019 | 31 March, 2019
on 2020
Foreign Currency Foreign Currency | {Rs.) Foreign {Rs.}

Currency
usD - “ 8,839 6.11
OMR - - - -
Total - 6.11
EUR (177,658) (147.05) (34,819) (22.04)
Total {147.05) {27.04)

Forzaign currency sensitivity

Foreign Currency Change in Rate March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
UsD N
5% - 031
{5%) - {0.31)
EUR : 5% {7.35) {1.35)
{5%) 7.35 1.35
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Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer
contract, [eading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities
(primarily trade receivables) and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks and financial
institutions, foreign exchange transactions and other financial instruments.

Trade receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by the Company as per approved debtors policy and esta blished procedures
and controls relating to customer credit risk management. Qutstanding customer receivables are regularly
manitored and any credit to new customers are generally covered by security deposits or bank guarantees.

At March 31, 2020, the Company had 10 customers (March 31, 2019: 11 customers) that owed the Company
mare than Rs. 10,00 each and accounted far approximately 98% {March 31, 2019: 99%) of all the receivables
outstanding.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date. The Company does not hold collateral as
security. The Company evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to tra de receivahles as moderate, as
its customers are broad-based, however, they operate largely in dependent market.

Financial instruments {security depasits) and cash deposits

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company’s treasury
department in accordance with the Company’s policy. Investments of surplus funds are made only with
approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned to each counterparty. The limits are set to
minimise the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss through counterparty’s potential
failure to make payments.

Liguidity risk
Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Company cannot meet lts financial obligations. The objective of

liquidity risk management is to maintain sufficient liquidity and ensure that funds are available for use as per
* requirements. The Company monitors its risk of a shortage of funds using a rolling cash flow forecasts.

e Company assasse T i ingH dconciuded-ittebe———
low. The Company has access to a sufficient variety of sources of funding and debt maturing within 12 months
can be rolled over with existing lenders, if required.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the company's financial liabilities based on contractual
undiscounted payments.
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On less than |3 to 12 (X to 5> 5 | Total
demand | 3 months | months years years
Year ended 31 WMarch,
2020
Borrowings - 541.66 1900.00 - - 2,441.66
Trade payables -1 1,372.43 1,300.68 - - 2,673.11
Other financial liabilities - 10.02 1086.29 500.00 - 1,596.31
- 1,924.11 4,286.97 500.00 - 6,711.08
Year ended 31 March,
2019 :
Borrowings - 593.75 1,781.25 541.66 2 2,5916.66
Trade payables -| 1,523.42 1,085.23 - - 2,608.65
Other financial liabilities - 34.50 83.54 1,500.00 - 1,618.04
-| 2,151.67 2,950.02 2041.66 - 7,143.35

Excessive risk concentration

Concentrations arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities, or activities
in the same geographical region, or have economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual
obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, palitical or other conditions. Cencentrations
indicate the relative sensitivity of the company's performance to developments affecting a particular
industry.

In order to avoid excessive concentrations of risk, the Company's policies and procedures include specific
guidelines to focus on the maintenance of a diversified portfolic. Identified concentrations of credit risks are
controlled and managed accordingly.

33. Impact of Covid-19

The outbreak of Coronavirus (Covid-19) pandemic globally and in India has caused significant disturbance
~ and slowdown of economic activities. Impact to revenue from services has been relatively minimal and
overall revenue may be similar to previous year.

Company is not expecting:
a, any impact on lts receivables and other financial asseis
b. any breach of debt covenants as Company has enough cash balance and cash inflows to meet its

Tiability towards Interest and principal OBligation it any.

Company will continue to be vigilant on various developments in future so as to insulate itself and its
empioyees from any adverse impacts.
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34. Capital Management

For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, and all other
equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the parent. The primary objective of the Company’s
capital management is to maximise the shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in ecanomic conditions
and the requirements of the financial covenants. The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which
Is debt divided by total capital plus debt. The Campany's policy is to keep the gearing ratio at an optimal level
to ensure that the debt related covenants are complied with.

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Borrowings 2426.72 - 2,816.61
Net debt 2426.72 2816.61
Capital components

Equity 1,015.69 1,019.69
Other Equity* 4,525.27 3,981.73
Total Capital 5,544.96 5,001,42
Capital and net debt 7,971.68 7,818.03
Gearing ratio (%) 30% 36%

*The above s inclusive of interim dividend of Rs. 9 fully paid equity share (March 31, 2019 — Rs. Nil}

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to
ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to the loans and borrowings that define capital structure
requirements, Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans
and borrowings. There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any loans and borrowing in the
current periad.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended
March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2013,

—— 35 teases

Ind AS 116: Company as Lessee

Company has recognized Rs.667.66 as depreciation on Right of Use Asset and interest expense of Rs.66.17
on lease liability during the year in the profit and loss account.

36. The Company has undertaken necessary steps to comply with the transfer pricing regulations. The
Management is of the opinion that the international and domestic transactions are at arm’s length and
believes that the afaresaid legislation will not have any impact on the financial statements, particuiarly on

ount of tax expense and that of provision for taxation.
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37. Previous year figures have been regrouped/re-arranged where necessary to conform to current year's
classification.
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